
 

Mr Dylan Williams 
Prif Weithredwr – Chief Executive 

CYNGOR SIR YNYS MÔN 
ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 
Swyddfeydd y Cyngor - Council Offices 

LLANGEFNI 
Ynys Môn - Anglesey 
LL77 7TW 

 
Ffôn / tel (01248) 752500 
Ffacs / fax (01248) 750839 

 

 

RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD  NOTICE OF MEETING 

CYNGOR YMGYNGHOROL SEFYDLOG AR 
ADDYSG GREFYDDOL (CYSAG) 

STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR 
RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (SACRE) 

DYDD MERCHER, 13 GORFFENNAF 2022 
AM 2.00 O’R GLOCH YP 

WEDNEDAY, 13 JULY 2022 
AT 2.00 PM 

CYFARFOD RHITHWIR WEDI’I  
FFRYDIO’N FYW 

VIRTUAL LIVE STREAMED  
MEETING  

Swyddog Pwyllgor 
Shirley Cooke 
01248 752514 

Committee Officer 

 

AELODAU/MEMBERS 

 
Cynghorwyr / Councillors: 

 
Non Dafydd, Douglas M Fowlie, Gwilym O Jones, Alun Mummery, Dylan Rees, Arfon Wyn 
 

Yr Enwadau Crefyddol / Religious Denominations 

 

Neil Ridings (Yr Eglwys yng Nghymru/The Church in Wales), Christopher Thomas (Yr 
Eglwys Babyddol/The Catholic Church), Parch/Rev Sue Altree (Yr Eglwys 
Fethodistaidd/The Methodist Church), Parch/Rev Deborah Stammers (Undeb y 

Bedyddwyr/The Baptist Union of Wales), Edward Morris Jones (Undeb yr Annibynnwyr 
Cymraeg/ Union of Welsh Independents), Elaine Green (Yr Eglwys Bresbyteraidd/ 
Presbyterian Church of Wales) 

 

Athrawon/Teachers 

 

Mefys Jones-Edwards (Ysgol Syr Thomas Jones), Heledd Hearn (Ysgol Uwchradd 
Bodedern), Owain Roberts (Ysgol Cybi), Manon Morris Williams (Ysgol Santes Dwynwen) 
 
Aelod Cyfetholedig/Co-Opted Member 

 

Rheinallt Thomas 

 

 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Please note that meetings of the Committee are streamed for live and subsequent 
broadcast on the Council’s website. The Authority is a Data Controller under the Data 
Protection Act and data collected during this live stream will be retained in accordance with 
the Authority’s published policy. 
 

 

 

A G E N D A 
 

 

1    CHAIRPERSON   

 To elect a Chairperson. 

 

2    VICE-CHAIRPERSON   

 To elect a Vice-Chairperson. 
 

3    DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 To receive any declaration of interest from a Member or Officer in respect of any 
item of business.  

 

4    MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 8) 

 To submit for confirmation, the following draft minutes:-  

 

 SACRE meeting held on 15 February 2022. 

 Agreed Syllabus Conference held on 15 February 2022. 
 

5    THE AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS FOR 

ANGLESEY SCHOOLS  (Pages 9 - 28) 

 To present the new Agreed Syllabus for Anglesey schools. 
 

6    NAPFRE'S POLICY ON RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS   

 The RE Advisor to provide an update on the above. 
 

7    WALES ASSOCIATION OF SACRES (WASACRE)   

 To receive an update from SACRE’s members who attended the WASACRE 
meeting held on 29 June 2022. 

 

8    TO REVIEW THE SACRE'S MEMBERSHIP   

   To review the Committee’s Membership.  

  To consider nominations from non-religious groups to be represented on  
   the SACRE.    

 

9    ANY OTHER MATTERS   

 Any other matters for discussion – with prior agreement of the Chair.  
 



1  

STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION 
(SACRE) 

 

         Minutes of the meeting held on 15 February 2022 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Dylan Rees (Chair) 

 

The Education Authority 
 

Councillors Gwilym O Jones, Alun Roberts  
  
  The Religious Denominations 

   
 Mrs Elaine Green (The Presbyterian Church of Wales) 
 Rev Deborah Stammers (The Baptist Union of Wales) 

Mr Christopher Thomas (The Catholic Church) 
 
Teacher Representatives  

 

Mrs Heledd Hearn (Ysgol Uwchradd Bodedern) 
 

IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs Gwyneth M Hughes (Senior Welfare Manager, 
Education) (RE Advisor to the SACRE) 

 Mr Owen Davies (Senior Primary Manager) 
 Mrs Shirley Cooke (Committee Officer) 

 
APOLOGIES:   Mrs Manon Morris Williams (Ysgol Santes 

Dwynwen, Newborough) 
 Mrs Mefys Jones-Edwards (Ysgol Syr Thomas 

Jones, Amlwch) 
 Mr Rheinallt Thomas  
 
 

 
 

1. DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

 
None received. 
 

2. MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the previous meeting of the SACRE held on 23 November 2021  
were presented and confirmed as correct. 
 
Matters arising from the minutes:- 
 
Item 3 – 
 

 Reference was made to leaders in secondary schools sharing their  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



2  

expertise in planning the curriculum with the primary sector in South 
Anglesey.  A question was raised whether engagement with the primary 
sector in currently taking place in the other four secondary schools on 
Anglesey? 
 
The RE Advisor responded that two SACRE teachers are leaders in Ysgol 
Syr Thomas Jones and Ysgol Bodedern.  She reported that she would seek 
clarification from GwE as to whether teacher expertise in RE is available in 
every school in Anglesey, and report back to the SACRE’s next meeting.  
 
The Senior Primary Manager reported that GwE has established regional 
boards in each of the six Humanities Areas of Learning and Experience, 
and teachers from Anglesey schools sit on these boards.  He highlighted 
the need for local collaboration between the secondary and primary sector, 
and stated that arrangements are already in place. 
 
It was noted that GwE will assign a Humanities representative to support 
schools, but specialist support in RVE will not be provided to the SACRE. 
 
It was suggested that the SACRE requests specialist support from GwE, to 
fulfil its function in supporting schools.  There needs to be equity in the 
Humanities AoLE, or RVE may be lost, if it is not given the same status as 
the other Humanities subjects.  
 
RESOLVED that the RE Advisor contacts GwE to request information 
and clarity regarding arrangements between the secondary and 
primary sector in Anglesey schools. 
 

 With reference to the SACRE’s concerns regarding home education, 
Councillor Gwilym Jones reported that this issue was raised in a meeting of 
the Schools Programme Review Panel on 25 November 2021.  A 
presentation was also received, as confirmed in the Panel’s minutes 
below:- 

  

 Reference was made to the discussion which took place during the 
previous Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) meeting 
held on the 23rd of November 2021, and reference made to an increase in the 
number of children and young people educated at home. 

 It was noted that today is an opportunity for the Education Service to share 
the developments of the past few months with the Elected Members and also 
an opportunity for the Members to ask questions.  

 This area was a bridge between the Education Service and Social Services 
and it was noted that there had been numerous comments regarding elective 
home education at previous Social Services Improvement Panel meetings. This 
is because of the potential for safeguarding issues arising.  

 Reference was made to the procedures in place to work proactively so as 
to ensure robust safeguarding arrangements. Teulu Môn is a point of contact if 
there are concerns. Strategic focus also through the North Wales Safeguarding 
Children’s Board. 

 
 

Page 2



3  

 North West Arrangements → Operational Level: new Elective Home 
Education Lead Teacher post created in February, 2021 (funded through Welsh 
Government grant funding) within the Education Welfare Team. Main objective 
of the role - to create positive contact with families. Processes and procedures 
in place since September, 2021 to assess the education provision of home 
educated children / young people. Collaboration between the Lead Teacher 
and the Education Quality Officer - this includes joint visits where appropriate. 

 Contact Data: 92 children/ young people educated at home and 58 
contacted by phone, email or visit by the Specialist Teacher. Aim -build positive 
contact and offer support to parents (e.g. via a Facebook page run by a group 
of parents etc.). Establishing and maintaining relationships with parents is key 
to the success of the contact. Welfare Officers check any welfare issues where 
concern arises on the educational side. The Council cannot enforce contact. 

 Statutory requirement for the person responsible for teaching to provide an 
annual educational report. Many examples of high quality education being 
provided for children at home. 

 Forum in place to discuss children where there is concern. Arrangements in 
place including the need to create action plans and an expectation to report / 
monitor and take further action as required. School Attendance Order is a 
possible step to take if there is cause for concern. 

 Arrangements for additional learning needs also apply to this cohort of 
children / young people - this includes Additional Learning Plans and timely 
reviews. 

 Extensive network of provision available to home educated children through 
the Additional Learning Needs and Inclusion Service such as psychologists, 
Careers Wales (post 16 provision), Health Board specialties etc. 

 Details are anticipated from the Welsh Government in the New Year on 
what level of provision should be offered to home educated children / young 
people. 

 Going forward - an objective of increasing the number of visits to home 
educated children. Also, review our arrangements in light of the Welsh 
Government's announcement on the nature of the support offered. 

 

 The RE Advisor confirmed that she is in the process of distributing the 
£4,000 grant funding centrally between the 5 Anglesey schools within each 
catchment area.  

 
 Item 5 - The Chair reported that he has not yet received a nomination for a  
 representative from the Union of Welsh Independents to join the SACRE.  
 
 RESOLVED that the Clerk to the SACRE contacts Rev Jim Clarke to 
 request that he nominates a representative from the Church to sit on the 
 SACRE. 
 
 Item 6 – RESOLVED that the Clerk to the SACRE invites a member of the  
 Church in Wales to attend the SACRE’s next meeting to present an 
 overview of the Pilgrimage Project. 
 
 
 

 

Page 3



4  

3.  ANNUAL REPORT OF THE ANGLESEY SACRE FOR 2020/21 
 

   The draft Annual Report of the Anglesey SACRE for 2020/21 was presented for  
 consideration and approval. 
 
 The Chair and members of the SACRE thanked the RE Advisor for her excellent  
 work in preparing a comprehensive Annual Report for 2020/21.  The Annual  
 Report was approved by the SACRE, subject to minor amendments as noted in  
 discussion. 

 
 Reference was made to Mrs Catherine Jones in the report, a former member of 
 the SACRE, who represented the Union of Welsh Baptists for many years prior  
 to the pandemic.  Mrs Jones stepped down from her role when virtual meetings 
 became the norm.  The SACRE extended their gratitude to Mrs Jones for her  
 input and long service to the SACRE. 
 
 Concerns were raised that the uptake in pupils sitting RE GCSE in some 
 schools is increasing, while in other schools, the subject is in decline.  It was  
 questioned whether the difference was due to a lack of expertise available in  
 some schools, or whether the syllabus is too challenging compared to other  
 subjects. 

 
 Discussion focused on the number of pupils who are taught RE A Level in their  
 own schools, or have to travel elsewhere to study the subject.  Mrs Heledd  
 Hearn confirmed that 2 pupils from Year 12 and two from Year 13 from Ysgol 
 Gyfun Llangefni attend Bodedern School for RE lessons, due to the lack of  
 expertise currently available in their local school.  

 
 It was noted that due to the decreasing trend in the uptake of RE, schools need  
 to be as flexible as possible in terms of teaching.  RE is now being offered 
 through the medium of English, which has been welcomed by the SACRE.  
 

RESOLVED:- 
 

 That Mrs Deborah Stammers conveys the SACRE’s appreciation to  
  Mrs Catherine Jones for her contribution to the SACRE over many 
     years. 

 To adopt the SACRE’s Annual Report for 2020/21, subject to the 
correction of minor errors.  

 That the RE Advisor forwards a copy of the Annual Report for 2020/21 
 to Welsh Government.   

 
4. REPORT BY THE RE ADVISOR TO THE SACRE 

 
The RE Advisor reported that she had shared correspondence with the 
SACRE’s teachers in relation to the requirement for pupils to sit A Level 
examinations this year.  She stated that it will be a challenging time for pupils 
and teachers to return to examinations in schools, and echoed the SACRE’s 
concerns.  It was noted that some flexibility has been given to schools 
regarding the choice of subjects.  
 

Page 4



5  

Clarity was sought regarding the current arrangements in schools for RE 
GCSEs and A Levels.  Mrs Heledd Hearn confirmed that pupils will sit 3 out of 4 
units for GCSE, and each school will decide which unit not to study.  With 
regard to pupils in Year 10, schools have received some information on what 
the content of the examinations will be eg the Synagogue and home will be 
included in Judaism, and it is likely that the question will be an evaluation, 
carrying 15 marks.  As regards A Level, the content of the examination is 
unclear, but it has been confirmed that some changes will be made.  The 
syllabus for Buddhism will stay the same for Years 12 and 13, and the syllabi 
for Ethics and Philosophy have been reduced, which has been well received by 
teachers.  
 
RESOLVED to note the matters raised during discussion.  
 

5. AGREED SYLLABUS FOR RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS 
 

The Chair referred to the Anglesey and Gwynedd Agreed Syllabus Conference 
held virtually earlier today.  He stated that the Conference had been very 
successful, and all groups - Councillors, members of religious institutions and 
teachers voted unanimously to accept the Agreed Syllabus for Anglesey. 
 
RESOLVED to accept the Agreed Syllabus for Religion, Values and Ethics 
for adoption by the County Council. 
 

6. ANY OTHER MATTERS 
 

The Chair reported that the WASACRE’s draft Constitution was circulated to the  
SACRE for information, following publication of the agenda.  
 
RESOLVED to note the changes to the SACRE’s Constitution.  
 
The Chair referred to the forthcoming County Council Elections, and stated that  
he was unsure whether he would be attending any future SACRE meetings.  As 
Chair of the Anglesey SACRE, he thanked the SACRE for all the support he 
has received, and wished everyone well.  

 
 

                        The meeting concluded at 4.00 pm 
 
                                COUNCILLOR DYLAN REES 
                                                 CHAIR 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 

                           AGREED SYLLABUS CONFERENCE 
 

       Minutes of the virtual meeting held on 15 February 2022 
 
 

PRESENT:  Members of the Anglesey SACRE 
 
   Councillor Dylan Rees (Chair) 
 
   Councillors Gwilym Jones, Alun Roberts 
    

Mrs Elaine Green (The Presbyterian Church of Wales) 
Rev Deborah Stammers (The Baptist Union of Wales) 
Mr Christopher Thomas (The Catholic Church) 
Mrs Mefys Jones-Edwards (Ysgol Syr Thomas Jones, Amlwch) 
Mrs Heledd Hearn (Ysgol Uwchradd Bodedern) 
Mrs Manon Morris-Williams (Ysgol Santes Dwynwen, 
Newborough) 

    
Members of the Gwynedd SACRE 
 
Councillor Judith Humphreys 
Councillor Paul Rowlinson  
Mr Garem Jackson  
Mrs Gwawr Maelor  
Ms Mair Huws  

   Mrs Miriam Amlyn (Teacher Representative) 
       
IN ATTENDANCE:  Mrs Gwyneth M Hughes (Senior Welfare Manager, Education) 

(RE Advisor to the Anglesey SACRE) 
 Mr Owen Davies (Senior Primary Manager, Education, ACC) 
 Mr Phil Lord (GwE) 
 Mrs Shirley Cooke (Committee Officer) 
 
APOLOGIES: Councillor Menna Baines (Gwynedd SACRE) 
 Councillor Cemlyn Williams (Gwynedd SACRE) 

Mrs Cathryn Davey (Teacher Representative) 
Mrs Eirian Bradley-Roberts (Teacher Representative) 
Ms Naomi Wood (The Church in Wales) 

 

 
The Chair welcomed members of the Anglesey and Gwynedd SACREs to the 
Agreed Syllabus Conference.  
 
The RE Advisor for the Anglesey SACRE reported that the purpose of the 
Conference is to determine the Agreed Syllabus for Religion, Values and Ethics.  It 
was noted that the potential Agreed Syllabus is the RVE Guidance from Welsh 
Government, which will be decided locally, and will establish what should be taught 
in RVE in schools in Wales.  It was noted that each Conference has a legal duty to 

Page 7



 

 2 

review the Agreed Syllabus every 5 years, and recommend an appropriate syllabus 
to the local authority for adoption. 
 
The new curriculum will be implemented for pupils up to Year 7 in September 2022, 
and will be extended on a yearly basis up to Year 11 in 2026.  

 
The RE Advisor gave an in depth PowerPoint presentation on RVE in the 
Curriculum for Wales, and gave a summary of the following:- 
 

 Legislation and Guidance for the Agreed Syllabus; 

 5 Statements of Humanities Area of Learning and Experience – What Matters.  

 The 4 purposes of every school’s curriculum. 

 
It was noted that before an agreement can be reached, the SACRE members from 
Anglesey and Gwynedd will each need to form the following three groups to 
consider the syllabus, and reach a conclusion:- 
 
Group A - a group to represent religious and non-religious denominations; 
Group B - a group to represent teachers; 
Group C - a group to represent the local authority. 
 
Mr Phil Lord (GwE) reported that only one person from each group will be allowed 
to vote, and agreement must be reached unanimously by all three groups before 
the new Agreed Syllabus can be presented for adoption by the local authority.  
Should a decision not be reached, then each individual authority will have to decide 
its own syllabus, as Welsh Government has authority to intervene and make that 
decision for the local Education Authority. 
 
Members of the Anglesey SACRE’s group A, B and C left the meeting to deliberate 
in private session.  It was concluded that an unanimous decision had been reached 
by the three groups from Anglesey to accept the Agreed Syllabus for the local 
authority to adopt.   
 
It was later confirmed that following deliberation, the Gwynedd SACRE members  
also agreed to adopt the Agreed Syllabus for schools in Gwynedd. 
 

 
       The meeting concluded at 14.50 pm 
 

              COUNCILLOR DYLAN REES 
                       (Chair of the Anglesey SACRE) 

 

Page 8



Ynys Môn Agreed Syllabus  

 Religion Value and Ethics 

Preface: 

As RVE is a locally determined subject, the agreed syllabus specifies 

what should be taught in RVE within each of the 22 local authorities in 

Wales for those schools that teach the agreed syllabus. 

This guidance is therefore also directed at those responsible for 

preparing an agreed syllabus, who must have regard to this guidance, 

including: 

 the local authority who have a function in adopting the agreed 

syllabus drawn up by the Agreed Syllabus Conference 

 the Agreed Syllabus Conference 

 the body of persons established by the Welsh Ministers to prepare 

an agreed syllabus if the Agreed Syllabus Conference has been 

unable to do so 

Anglesey local authority convened an Agreed Syllabus Conference at 

the start of 2022 to review the syllabus and to recommend an 

appropriate syllabus for the local authority  to adopt. The agreed 

syllabus for each local authority will be reviewed every five years. 

All maintained schools and settings are required to have regard to the 

agreed syllabus including schools of a religious character, in their design 

of the agreed syllabus element of their RVE provision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



1. Introduction 

Religion, values and ethics (RVE) is a statutory requirement of the Curriculum for 

Wales and is mandatory for all learners from ages 3 to 16. RVE forms part of the 

Humanities Area. This Area encompasses geography; history; religion, values and 

ethics; business studies. These disciplines share many common themes, concepts 

and transferable skills, whilst having their own discrete body of knowledge and skills. 

There is no parental right to request that a child is withdrawn from RVE in the 

Curriculum for Wales. 

The purpose of this RVE guidance: 

This RVE guidance has been written by practitioners and religious education experts 

to provide additional support on how RVE can be taught within the Humanities Area. 

It emphasises the integral nature of RVE within this Area and outlines the unique and 

distinct contribution that RVE makes to the Curriculum for Wales. 

More information on the legal status of this RVE guidance can be found in the 

legislation summary of the Curriculum for Wales Framework. 

 

2. Audience 

The RVE guidance in the Humanities Area has been written to be accessible to all 

those responsible for designing a curriculum. Those persons who must have regard 

to the guidance when designing a curriculum are: 

 the headteacher of a maintained school or a maintained nursery school 

 the governing body of a maintained school or a maintained nursery school 

 a provider of funded non-maintained nursery education 

 the teacher in charge of a pupil referral unit 

 the management committee for a pupil referral unit 

 a person who provides teaching and learning for a child, otherwise than at a 

maintained school, maintained nursery school or pupil referral unit, by virtue 

of arrangements made under section 19A of the Education Act 1996 (c. 56) 

 a local authority in Wales 

In addition, the guidance may also be useful to 

 practitioners, regional consortia,  

 awarding bodies, Estyn,  

 teacher unions,  

 religious organisations, non-religious organisations,  

 parents and carers and other bodies in Wales with an interest in RVE.  

 

 

Page 10



3. Religion Values and Ethics within the Curriculum for Wales 

RVE within the Curriculum for Wales can offer a distinctive contribution to the 

realisation of the four purposes for all learners. As such, this guidance supports 

schools and settings in developing provision for RVE that prepares learners in Wales 

for life and work in a fast-changing and diverse world, as responsible and informed 

citizens. 

RVE guidance is situated within the Humanities Area and incorporates a range of 

disciplinary approaches that can be used by learners to engage critically with a 

broad range of religious and non-religious concepts. For example, disciplinary 

approaches relevant to RVE may include religious studies, philosophy, 

theology, sociology, psychology, and anthropology. There are also strong 

relationships between RVE and the other disciplines within Humanities as well as 

with other Areas. 

Concepts are important in RVE because they are central ideas that help learners to 

make sense of and interpret human experience, the natural world and their own 

place within it. Learners will have opportunities to explore RVE concepts through a 

variety of sub lenses which make up the RVE disciplinary lens. These concepts and 

sub lenses are set out in this RVE guidance. 

In the Curriculum for Wales RVE is objective, critical and pluralistic, both in content 

and pedagogy; it is not about making learners ‘religious or ‘non-religious’. The 

expression ‘objective, critical and pluralistic’ comes from European Convention on 

Human Rights case law. The Curriculum and Assessment (Wales) Act 2021 ensures 

that all learners must be offered opportunities through RVE to engage with different 

religions and non-religious philosophical convictions in their own locality and in 

Wales, as well as in the wider world. 

 

4. Spiritual development  

One of the features of the four purposes of the curriculum is that learners will be 

supported to develop as healthy, confident individuals, ready to live fulfilling lives as 

valued members of society. Statements of what matters and RVE has many valuable 

and distinctive contributions to make. The statements of what matters are set out in 

the What Matters Code and include the key concepts for each Area. 

In the context of RVE, spiritual development is concerned with our natural ability to 

look for, express and understand what is important in life, and to question who we 

are and why we are here. Spiritual development may or may not involve religion. 

Through experiencing and reflecting on our relationships, spiritual development may 

be apparent in the following: awareness of self in relation to others; connections to 

the wider and the natural world (and, for some people, to a higher power or ultimate 

reality); creativity and going beyond the everyday; exploration of ultimate questions 

and contemplation of meaning and purpose. 

 

Page 11



5. Awareness of self in relation to others 

Learners can: 

 develop a sense of their uniqueness and value 

 reflect upon their own beliefs, values and actions, and express and justify their 

own feelings and opinions 

 develop aspirations and learn to live with disappointment 

 show empathy and consideration for others 

 develop compassion and help others 

 develop a voice and listen with respect to the voices of others 

 form good relationships 

 talk about themselves in relation to others, the world and/or a higher power or 

ultimate reality 

 gain awareness of and respect for the beliefs, teachings and practices of 

others, as well as an ability to articulate their own 

 explore how religious and non-religious beliefs and practices impact on the 

lives of individuals, the local community and wider society 

 Connections to the wider and the natural world 

Learners can: 

 develop an appreciation of belonging in their locality, Wales and the wider 

world 

 experience the natural world, value the environment and work towards 

sustainable futures for all 

 experience the richness of the stimuli around them through use of the senses 

 experience being present in the moment 

 develop awareness of the world around them and their place within it 

 make sense of their experience of the natural world and of human 

relationships 

 Creativity and going beyond the everyday 

 

6. Develop creativity and use their imagination 

Learners can  

 develop creativity and use their imagination 

 experience awe and wonder or be amazed by things 

 foster curiosity and develop insight 

 

7. Exploration of ultimate questions and contemplation of 

meaning and purpose 

Learners can: 

Page 12



 ask, consider and reflect on ultimate questions (the ‘big’ questions about life) 

 discover meaning and purpose in their own lives 

 experience that which is beyond the ordinary 

 Spiritual development can also occur as learners engage with their cynefin 

and occur in everyday life within their local, national and global communities. 

 

8. Designing your curriculum for RVE 

All schools and settings must also have regard to their locally agreed syllabus 

for RVE when designing their curriculum. 

This section is intended to support all those responsible for planning mandatory RVE 

within this Area. It is particularly relevant for practitioners, settings and Standing 

Advisory Councils. 

Curriculum design and development must incorporate, where appropriate, 

opportunities for learning and consideration of cross-cutting themes in the 

Curriculum for Wales. These cross-cutting themes are:  

 careers and work-related experiences,  

 human rights,  

 diversity, 

 local, national and international contexts and relationships and sexuality 

education. 

 It is also important that the cross-curricular skills of literacy, numeracy and 

digital competence, as well as the skills integral to the four purposes 

(creativity and innovation, critical thinking and problem solving, personal 

effectiveness, planning and organising) are considered in curriculum design. 

When realising their curriculum, schools and settings need to decide how RVE best 

works within their approach to the Humanities Area. For example, curriculum design 

can be integrated, multidisciplinary, interdisciplinary or disciplinary. Curriculum 

design should be evaluated regularly in line with the Curriculum for Wales 

Framework guidance. 

 

9. RVE and the four purposes 

At the heart of the Curriculum for Wales are the four purposes, which are the key 

drivers for curriculum design and, as such, should be the focus of all curriculum 

development. The four purposes set out the aspirations for all learners. 

 

By the age of 16, they should be: 

 ambitious, capable learners, ready to learn throughout their lives 

 enterprising, creative contributors, ready to play a full part in life and work 

Page 13



 ethical, informed citizens of Wales and the world 

 healthy, confident individuals, ready to lead fulfilling lives as valued members 

of society 

In the Humanities Area, the statements of what matters contribute to realising the 

four purposes of the curriculum. 

Mandatory RVE makes an important and distinctive contribution to supporting 

the four purposes by giving learners opportunities to: 

 engage with and explore ultimate and philosophical questions about the 

meaning, significance and purpose of life, and about the nature of human 

thought and of the universe, and the connections between them 

 undertake enquiries and engage with sources of wisdom and philosophies 

that encourage them to explore the challenges, opportunities and responses 

of human beings in the context of their cynefin, locally, in Wales and the wider 

world, as well as support them in evaluating their own perspectives and those 

of others 

 develop and express their own informed viewpoints, which prepares them for 

lifelong learning in a pluralistic and diverse world 

 use their knowledge and understanding of both institutional and personal 

religious and non-religious beliefs and practices to think critically about their 

own values and about how they might make important social and personal 

decisions 

 explore the ways in which religion and non-religious philosophical convictions 

have influenced human experience throughout history, so that they can make 

sense of their place in the world, imagine possible futures and create 

responsible solutions that take in to account the diverse needs and rights of 

all people 

 evaluate and use evidence from a range of religious and non-religious 

sources to engage with ethical and moral issues, past and contemporary, that 

challenge their knowledge and values. This enables learners to develop an 

understanding of religion and belief, culture, community, their cynefin, Wales 

and the wider world now and in the past, which can help to nurture a sense of 

place and belonging 

 respond sensitively to religion and non-religious philosophical convictions and 

explore the beliefs and practices of people in their community, Wales and the 

wider world, and how these might impact their actions and choices 

 develop secure values and establish their ethical beliefs and spirituality 

through the exploration of religion and non-religious philosophical convictions 

on a range of issues, which can in turn enable them to form positive 

relationships based upon trust and mutual respect 

 discuss and reflect on their own perspectives and those of others on a range 

of issues, which help them to build their mental, emotional and spiritual well-

being by developing confidence, resilience and empathy 

 

Page 14



10. RVE and the statements of what matters 

Before any detailed planning can begin, it is essential for practitioners and school 

leaders to consider the Humanities statements of what matters, which contribute to 

learners realising the four purposes of the curriculum. 

Practitioners and leaders should also consider the statements of what matters in 

other Areas where RVE may be able to contribute to learning. 

 

11. RVE concepts 

The statements of what matters in this Area allow learners to explore and critically 

engage with a broad range of religious and non-religious concepts, which should be 

carefully considered and underpin curriculum design. 

When considering RVE concepts within their curriculum, schools and settings 

should: 

 develop an understanding of the discipline and its value 

 provide rich contexts for learners to be curious, to explore ultimate questions 

and to search for an understanding of the human condition, as well as 

providing opportunities for learners to reflect and to experience awe and 

wonder, in a range of meaningful real-world contexts 

 develop rich contexts for enquiry into the concepts of religion, lived religion, 

worldviews, secularity, spirituality, life stance, identity and culture to develop 

learners’ well-rounded understanding of religious and non-religious beliefs 

and practices 

 provide rich contexts for engaging with concepts of belief, faith, truth, purpose, 

meaning, knowledge, sources of authority, self, origin, life, death and ultimate 

reality, which can enable learners to develop an understanding of personal 

and institutional beliefs about the nature of life and the world around them 

 develop rich contexts for exploring the concepts of identity, belonging, 

relationships, community, cynefin, diversity, pluralism and 

interconnectedness, which can enable learners to gain a sense of self and 

develop spirituality 

 explore the concepts of equality, sustainability, tolerance, freedom, prejudice, 

discrimination, extremism, good and evil, which can give learners an insight 

into the challenges and opportunities that face societies 

 reflect the concepts and contexts of religiosity, practice, ritual, tradition, 

worship, sacredness, symbolism and celebration to develop learners’ 

understanding of religion and belief 

 provide rich contexts for exploring the concepts of ethics, morality, justice, 

responsibilities, authority, humanity, rights, values and social action 

 

 

Page 15



12. The RVE lens 

This agreed syllabus focusses on the RVE disciplinary lens and can help schools 

and settings consider relevant content for their curriculum design. In this guidance 

the RVE lens is divided into a number of sub lenses through which the RVE 

concepts can be viewed and explored. The sub lenses are interconnected and are 

not intended to be units or topics. They draw on a recognised body of knowledge for 

RVE in Wales and help to ensure sufficient breadth and depth for RVE in the 

Humanities. The sub lenses lend themselves to all of the statements of what matters 

and are also relevant to other Areas and to the realisation of the four purposes. They 

help schools and settings understand significant aspects of RVE and identify 

opportunities for RVE within the statements of what matters to support curriculum 

development. 

Sub lenses in RVE include: 

 Search for meaning and purpose 

 How people respond to the deeper questions of life in order to understand the 

human condition. 

 The natural world and living things 

 How and why people show concern and responsibility for the world and 

experience awe and wonder in nature. 

 Identity and belonging 

 What makes us who we are as people, communities and citizens living in a 

diverse world. 

 Authority and influence 

 How and why different types of authority influence people’s lives. 

 Relationships and responsibility 

 How people live together and why developing healthy relationships is 

important. 

 Values and ethics 

 How and why people make moral choices and how this influences their 

actions. 

 The journey of life 

 What people experience as part of the journey of life and how these 

experiences are acknowledged. 

 

13. Learner progression and learning journeys in RVE 

Learner progression is an important driver for designing your curriculum. This is 

reflected in the statements of what matters and in the descriptions of learning for the 

Humanities, which help to provide more detailed guidance for practitioners. 

 

In order to develop a shared understanding of progression from ages 3 to 16 in 

relation to RVE within this Area, an example ‘learning journey’ for each sub lens is 

Page 16



provided. These learning journeys illustrate how a learner may develop their 

understanding of concepts in RVE through the various interconnected sub lenses, 

and may be useful when designing your curriculum, alongside the descriptions of 

learning for the Humanities. They have taken account of the descriptions of learning 

and encourage schools and settings to be creative and confident when planning for 

learner progression in RVE within their curriculum design. The learning journeys do 

not provide an alternative set of descriptions of learning, nor do they provide specific 

reference points or criteria for the pace of progression, and should not be used as 

such. All of the statements of what matters in this Area are reflected across the 

learning journeys. 

 

Example learning journey 1: search for meaning and purpose 

This learning journey draws mainly from two statements of what matters: ‘Events and 

human experiences are complex, and are perceived, interpreted and represented in 

different ways’ and ‘Human societies are complex and diverse, and shaped by 

human actions and beliefs’. There are connections with other statements of what 

matters and with other Areas that can also be explored through this sub lens. 

The descriptions of learning will help to provide more detailed guidance on 

progression. 

This journey is about the ‘deeper questions of life’. At the early stages of learning, 

learners begin to ask deeper questions about themselves and others, and about the 

natural world and living things around them (for example, ‘Who am I?’ and ‘Why do 

things die?), as well as listening to the opinions of others. Further along their journey, 

they gather and discuss religious and non-religious insights and consider their own 

and others’ opinions, viewpoints and interpretations with increasing sophistication. 

Later, issues of truth, meaning, purpose and value can be shared, debated and 

evaluated as learners engage more deeply with a range of challenging questions on 

these issues (for example the existence of good and evil, the nature of suffering, the 

use of wealth). They can recognise that responses to such questions are complex, 

as well as often partial and inconclusive. 

This journey is also about ‘influence, continuity and change’. At the early stages of 

their learning journey, learners begin to know and express what they like and dislike, 

what makes them happy and sad, and what their hopes and dreams are for the 

future, as well as responding to the ideas of others. Further along their journey, they 

can identify and discuss religious and non-religious insights concerning human 

feelings and needs, including what influences these and how they are expressed in 

their own and other people’s lives. Later, learners can come to recognise both 

continuity and change in responses to questions about meaning and purpose in life, 

both in their own lives and in society and culture, across time and place. They 

evaluate relevant contemporary values and ideas of self-worth from religious and 

non-religious perspectives. 

This journey is also about ‘human quests and contributions’. At the early stages of 

their learning journey, learners begin to show an awareness of the people and the 

Page 17



‘big ideas’ that have shaped their local places and everyday lives. Further along their 

journey, they imagine and discuss what they may contribute both now and in the 

future, and increasingly engage with the relationship between aspiration and 

practice, while considering a variety of contributions from religious and non-religious 

sources. Later, as learners’ understanding develops, they can make increasingly 

complex connections between aspects of health and well-being, the needs and 

demands of the world today and their own search for meaning and purpose. 

 

Example learning journey 2: the natural world and living things 

This learning journey draws mainly from two statements of what matters: ‘Our natural 

world is diverse and dynamic, influenced by processes and human actions’ and 

‘Informed, self-aware citizens engage with the challenges and opportunities that face 

humanity, and are able to take considered and ethical action’. There are connections 

with other statements of what matters and with other Areas that can also be explored 

through this sub lens. 

The descriptions of learning will help to provide more detailed guidance on 

progression. 

This journey is about ‘care, concern and respect’. At the early stages of their learning 

journey, learners begin to show care and respect for the natural world and living 

things around them. Further along their journey, they can identify how and why they 

and others show care, concern and respect, as well as considering religious and 

non-religious perspectives. Later, with increasing sophistication, learners can come 

to raise, and consider critically, ethical questions related to human activity, nature 

and place; engaging with religious, non-religious responses and their own 

responses. 

This journey is also about ‘awe and wonder’. At the early stages of their learning 

journey, learners begin to experience awe and wonder in nature, which develops as 

they explore the world around them, observing and asking questions. Further along 

their journey, a sense of the complexity of life and its interconnectedness grows, as 

well as a sense of active responsibility. Later, experiences of awe and wonder are 

nuanced by deeper and more wide-ranging engagement with others and with place, 

as well as with the natural world and living things. 

This journey is also about ‘responsibility and action’. At the early stages of their 

learning journey, learners begin to show an awareness of the variety of living things 

beyond themselves, and that their actions can impact these. Further along their 

journey, they can come to know religious and non-religious ‘stories’ about local 

places, the natural world and living things, and how these relate to themselves and 

others. Through religious and non-religious narratives (for example, about the origins 

of the world), learners can learn about different philosophies important to our 

understanding of the world and the place of humans within it. Later, with increasing 

sophistication, they become able to recognise how values and beliefs are reflected in 

action, from religious and non-religious perspectives, and how these relate to their 

own experiences. 

Page 18



This journey is also about ‘place and space’. At the early stages of their learning 

journey, learners begin to recognise that they are located in place and space, and 

this has meaning for them. Further along their journey, they recognise that places 

and spaces around them mean different things to different people, as well as 

considering places of special significance for religious and non-religious reasons. 

Later, learners can come to identify and explain various contested places (religious 

and non-religious), appreciating sensitivities surrounding place. They can understand 

the complexity of debates and of influences such as identity, authority, values, ethics 

and considerations of meaning and purpose in life. 

 

Example learning journey 3: values and ethics 

This learning journey draws mainly from two statements of what matters: ‘Events and 

human experiences are complex, and are perceived, interpreted and represented in 

different ways’ and ‘Informed, self-aware citizens engage with the challenges and 

opportunities that face humanity, and are able to take considered and ethical action’. 

There are connections with other statements of what matters and with other Areas 

that can also be explored through this sub lens. 

The descriptions of learning will help to provide more detailed guidance on 

progression. 

This journey is about ‘what people value’. At the early stages of their learning 

journey, learners begin to identify what is of value to them (for example, fairness, 

trust, love, life and kindness) and they listen to the opinions of others. They can 

recognise the need to respect others and can show what this looks like in their 

everyday lives. Further along their journey, learners become aware of different 

interpretations and expressions of common values, appreciating a variety of religious 

and non-religious influences. They learn how some values and rights have changed 

over time. As their knowledge and experience grows, learners can come to discuss a 

variety of religious and non-religious perspectives on instances of inequality and 

injustice, as well as the challenges of identifying and protecting human rights. Later 

they are increasingly able to form, defend and review their ethical positions on 

matters of religious and non-religious significance (for example, the sanctity of life, 

freedom of speech, animal welfare and war). 

This journey is also about ‘beliefs, actions and consequences’. At the early stages of 

their learning journey, learners begin to show an understanding of ‘right’ and ‘wrong’ 

and how their actions and feelings relate to this. Further along their journey, with 

increasing breadth and sophistication they can explain how their actions may have 

consequences for themselves and others, and for the world and living things, 

drawing on insights from a variety of religions and non-religious philosophical 

convictions. Later, they can come to postulate and evaluate the factors that influence 

their attitudes, behaviours and actions, and those of others, including factors relating 

to religious and non-religious belief and practice. 

Page 19



This journey is also about ‘decision-making’. At the early stages of their learning 

journey, learners begin to recognise basic moral dilemmas and offer solutions. 

Further along their journey, they can learn rules and codes of behaviour (both 

religious and non-religious) relevant to them and to others around them, and they 

can explain their impact on people’s lives. Later, with increasing sophistication, 

learners can come to identify and critically discuss the responsibilities and 

challenges of decision-making, showing understanding of relevant figures, processes 

and institutions that form part of decision-making, in both religious and non-religious 

contexts. Learners identify opportunities where appropriate moral action is needed in 

their communities, Wales and the wider world. 

 

Example learning journey 4: identity and belonging 

This learning journey draws mainly from two statements of what matters: ‘Events and 

human experiences are complex, and are perceived, interpreted and represented in 

different ways’ and ‘Human societies are complex and diverse, and shaped by 

human actions and beliefs’. There are connections with other statements of what 

matters and with other Areas that can also be explored through this sub lens. 

The descriptions of learning will help to provide more detailed guidance on 

progression. 

This journey is about ‘what makes people who they are’. At the early stages of their 

learning journey, learners begin to show an awareness of who they are and that they 

are similar to and different from others. Further along their learning journey, they 

discuss what can form identity (for example, relationships, lifestyles, beliefs and 

place) and how these influence people and their communities. Later, learners can 

review and evaluate a range of religious and non-religious philosophies, life stances 

and practices concerned with what it means to be human, and they can form and 

critically consider their own perspectives. 

This journey is also about ‘communities, contributions and diversity’. At the early 

stages of their learning journey, learners begin to understand that they are part of 

various groups and communities and what belonging looks like. They are aware of 

diversity within relevant communities and that their experiences of belonging are 

similar to and different from others. Further along their learning journey, they can 

explore expressions of belonging in a range of religious and non-religious contexts. 

They can discuss the significance of belonging in people’s lives, including their own. 

Later, with increasing sophistication, learners can come to identify and evaluate 

relationships between belonging, commitment and contributions to society, culture 

and well-being. 

 

This journey is also about ‘place, time and relationships’. At the early stages of their 

learning journey, learners begin to be aware that they exist in place and time, and 

that this shapes them and the communities around them. Further along their learning 

journey, they can explore interactions between a range of communities and 

Page 20



societies, locally and more widely, and they can discuss the contributions of identity 

and belonging from religious and non-religious perspectives. They can come to 

recognise continuity and change in identity and belonging, and how these are 

experienced personally and collectively. Later, learners can investigate and evaluate 

relationships and interdependencies between a range of groups, communities and 

societies (locally, nationally and globally) and how these impact on human life and 

the natural world. They can critically consider the roles of identity and belonging in 

understanding and responding to shared contemporary issues, from religious and 

non-religious perspectives. 

 

Example learning journey 5: authority and influence 

This learning journey draws mainly from three statements of what matters: ‘Events 

and human experiences are complex, and are perceived, interpreted and 

represented in different way’, ‘Human societies are complex and diverse, and 

shaped by human actions and beliefs’, and ‘Informed, self-aware citizens engage 

with the challenges and opportunities that face humanity, and are able to take 

considered and ethical action’. There are connections with other statements of what 

matters and with other Areas that can also be explored through this sub lens. 

The descriptions of learning will help to provide more detailed guidance on 

progression. 

This journey is about ‘authorities and influences’. At the early stages of their learning 

journey, learners begin to recognise that they are influenced by some important 

people and that this affects how they feel, think and behave. Further along their 

learning journey, they can identify and explore different sources of authority within 

religious and non-religious contexts (for example, leaders, relationships, texts, codes 

of behaviour and traditions). They can come to understand that sources of authority 

influence people’s lives in a variety of ways. Later, as learners’ understanding 

develops, they can analyse and evaluate complex relationships (including their own) 

that exist between and across sources of authority. They can come to critically 

consider the authority of religious and spiritual experience and conscience, in the 

past and present, and their impact on people, society and culture. 

This journey is also about ‘experiences and interpretations’. At the early stages of 

their learning journey, learners begin to be aware of important influences in the lives 

of others, and that their experiences are similar to and different from their own. 

Further along their learning journey, they can explore how sources of authority are 

interpreted in different ways by various people and groups, within religious and non-

religious contexts. They can come to recognise influences on interpretations and that 

some sources of authority carry more weight than others for different people, groups 

and societies. Later, learners can draw on multiple sources of authority to evaluate 

religious and non-religious interpretations of issues relevant to the human condition, 

and they can present their own informed positions. They can critically consider how 

and why experiences and concepts of authority may change over time. 

Page 21



This journey is also about ‘choices and actions’. At the early stages of their learning 

journey, learners begin to understand that their actions can be affected by choices. 

They can show awareness of influences on their choices. Further along their learning 

journey, they can come to recognise how people and communities draw on religious 

and non-religious sources of authority to guide them in their lives and to inform 

important decisions. Later, as learners’ understanding develops, they are able to use 

their knowledge and understanding of a range of sources of authority to engage 

critically in contemporary ethical issues or debates, and to influence possible actions 

and outcomes (for example, challenge, consensus and reconciliation). 

 

Example learning journey 6: relationships and responsibility 

This learning journey draws mainly from two statements of what matters: ‘Our natural 

world is diverse and dynamic, influenced by processes and human actions’ and 

‘Human societies are complex and diverse, and shaped by human actions and 

beliefs’. There are connections with other statements of what matters and with other 

Areas that can also be explored through this sub lens. 

The descriptions of learning will help to provide more detailed guidance on 

progression. 

This journey is about ‘how people live together’. At the early stages of their learning 

journey, learners begin to understand that they live in a number of relationships. 

They are aware of what helps them to live with others. They can offer opinions about 

how disagreements can be resolved. Further along their learning journey, they can 

identify and discuss how the importance of relationships (personal, social, 

environmental and transcendental) is expressed in people’s lives, drawing on 

religious and non-religious contexts. Later, learners can come to recognise that 

relationships are dynamic and complex. They can critically consider influences that 

can contribute to harmony and discord globally, locally and personally (including 

religious and non-religious influences). They can review and evaluate challenges 

presented by relationships, drawing on a range of religious and non-religious insights 

and experiences. 

This journey is also about ‘responsibilities and interconnectedness’. At the early 

stages of their learning journey, learners begin to be aware of connections between 

their own lives and the lives of other people, the natural world and living things. They 

can show responsibility for others through simple actions. Further along their 

learning journey, they can identify how and why people show responsibility for 

people and places outside their personal relationships. They can discuss important 

material and non-material dimensions of relationships (including spiritual, religious 

and moral dimensions), and they can come to recognise connections with human 

growth and how people can live together responsibly in the world. Later, learners can 

come to develop critical appreciation of significant issues affecting relationships at a 

global level and they can imagine possible futures. They can critically engage with a 

range of religious and non-religious philosophies exploring interconnectedness in 

life, as well as the nature and understanding of human beings within it. 

Page 22



This journey is also about ‘well-being, identity and inclusion’. At the early stages of 

their learning journey, learners begin to be aware of their own experiences and 

feelings when they engage in activities with others. They can recognise that other 

people have experiences and feelings, too, which are similar to and different from 

their own. They show curiosity about other people’s lives. Further along their learning 

journey, they can explore how action can involve significant commitment and 

sacrifice (past and present) and have major effects on the lives and well-being of 

others and on the wider world. They can come to recognise connections between 

actions and identity, including religious and non-religious influences. They can 

identify unfairness and inequality in their own personal lives and in wider society and 

suggest appropriate challenges. Later, learners can critically consider what healthy 

relationships look like and their contributions to well-being, drawing on a range of 

religious and non-religious perspectives. They can come to understand and evaluate 

relationships between personal identity and relevant group identity. 

 

Example learning journey 7: the journey of life 

This learning journey draws mainly from two statements of what matters: ‘Events and 

human experiences are complex, and are perceived, interpreted and represented in 

different ways’ and ‘Human societies are complex and diverse, and shaped by 

human actions and beliefs’. There are connections with other statements of what 

matters and with other Areas that can also be explored through this sub lens. 

The descriptions of learning will help to provide more detailed guidance on 

progression. 

This journey is about ‘meaning, purpose and influence’. At the early stages of their 

learning journey, learners begin to recognise that people have personal life stories. 

Learners start to tell their own life story. Further along their learning journey, they 

can explore a variety of paths through life that people have experienced, drawing on 

religious and non-religious contexts and influences. They can come to identify 

connections with meaning-making and purpose. Later, learners can analyse and 

critically consider the concept of vocation, in the past and present, from religious and 

non-religious perspectives. They can examine challenges encountered in people’s 

life trajectories and evaluate religious and non-religious responses. 

This journey is also about ‘life stages and events’. At the early stages of their 

learning journey, learners begin to be aware that they grow and change over time. 

They experience and compare how their own and other people’s growth is 

acknowledged and celebrated. They can show how their lives are connected to 

special times and seasons. Further along their learning journey, they can explore 

significant life events and rites of passage, and they can discuss the roles that these 

play in people’s lives by drawing on religious and non-religious insights. Later, 

learners can analyse and critically discuss human ritual action in the marking of 

significant events and time. They can come to evaluate relevant philosophies of time 

from religious and non-religious perspectives and demonstrate how these may 

impact beliefs, practices and actions. 

Page 23



This journey is also about ‘physical and spiritual journeying’. At the early stages of 

their learning journey, learners begin to recognise that they go on many different 

journeys for various reasons. They show interest in the journeys of other people and 

can see how their journeys are similar to and different from their own experiences. 

They are aware that journeys have physical features as well as non-material 

features. Further along their learning journey, they can explore people’s experiences 

of important journeys from religious and non-religious perspectives, and they can 

identify reasons for these journeys. They can come to understand that journeys are 

connected to place and time. They can imagine what an important journey might look 

like in their own lives. Later, learners can identify and evaluate relationships between 

physical and spiritual journeys and their effects on the lives of individuals, 

communities and wider society (for example, in relation to identity, human formation, 

diversity, culture). They can critically consider the interconnectedness of journeys, 

landscapes and people across place and time, drawing on religious and non-

religious contexts. 

 

 

14. Enriching learner experience in RVE 

Whichever approach is taken to curriculum development, schools and settings need 

to ensure rich learning in RVE across a broad range of experiences. Learning 

experiences are a central aspect of the philosophy of the Curriculum for Wales 

framework. When designing their curriculum schools and settings should ensure that 

a developmentally appropriate range of experiences relevant to RVE is provided for 

learners. These experiences can include opportunities to: 

 engage with religious and non-religious local communities in ways that 

learners will find meaningful and valuable 

 engage in role play and participate in, or observe, activities such as 

celebrations or re-enactments 

 consider what influences people in their response to ethical dilemmas, solve 

real and present problems, and explore past events 

 experience and reflect on the mystery, awe and wonder of the natural world, 

historical locations and religious and cultural sites 

 observe and participate in cultural activities that help learners to understand 

human experiences 

 handle and explore religious artefacts and objects, including sacred and other 

texts 

 visit local places of worship and other special places, landscapes and 

environments, including those with a significant religious and spiritual 

dimension 

 meet people for whom faith and belief is important to help learners explore 

lived experiences 

 ask big questions relating to higher powers or ultimate reality, the world, the 

meaning and purpose of life and of their own experiences 

Page 24



 engage with religious and non-religious sources, for example religious 

leaders, people of faith and belief, philosophers, places of worship, artefacts, 

sacred texts and philosophical writings 

 learn to respond to the beliefs and convictions of others whilst exploring and 

analysing their own views and values 

Enriching learner experience in RVE is also about schools and settings exploring 

their place within the local and wider community as an important step in designing 

their curriculum. This can be supported by schools and settings researching the faith 

and belief groups that are represented locally and across Wales, as well as sacred 

places and spaces, past and present. 

 

15. Key links with other Areas 

Curriculum development in schools and settings should explore clear links and 

interdependencies between RVE and the other Areas as part of a holistic curriculum. 

These links and interdependencies should be drawn upon during curriculum 

planning, with practitioners working creatively and collaboratively to support learners’ 

realisation of the four purposes of the curriculum. 

Points to consider for schools and settings 

The following questions can be used by schools and settings when 

designing their curriculum for RVE. 

 Have you considered how RVE will work best within the Humanities Area? 

 Have you had regard for your agreed syllabus for RVE? 

 Does your curriculum design for RVE support the realisation of the four 

purposes? 

 Have you used the statements of what matters for this Area to inform your 

curriculum design? 

 Have you used RVE concepts in your curriculum design? 

 Have you considered a range of sub lenses through which to view RVE 

concepts to support curriculum design? 

 Have you considered learning progression in RVE, using the principles of 

progression and descriptions of learning in the Humanities Area? 

 Have you considered the ’learning journeys’ provided to support your 

understanding of progression in relation to RVE? 

 Have you reflected on the possible learning journeys of your own learners to 

support curriculum design for RVE? 

 Have you included opportunities in your curriculum design for enriching 

learner experiences in RVE? 

 Have you made key links between RVE and the other areas of learning and 

experience? 

 Have you included opportunities for learners’ spiritual development in RVE? 

 Does your curriculum design for RVE ensure an appropriate depth, breadth 

and quality of learning? 

Page 25



 

 

16. Ensuring inclusivity in RVE 

All learners with additional learning needs (ALN) should be supported to overcome 

barriers to learning and achieve their full potential in RVE. Schools and settings 

providing education for learners with ALN, including those with profound and multiple 

learning difficulties, should consider how best to meet the needs of all learners when 

planning and providing effective learning opportunities in RVE. 

Considerations may include, for example: 

 active, multi-sensory approaches to introduce new learning in RVE, taking 

account of the different learning styles and emotional needs of each learner 

 inclusive opportunities for learners to experience awe and wonder in a variety 

of environments 

 using a variety of stimuli, such as religious and non-religious artefacts and 

relevant contexts 

 full participation of all learners including those who use a means of 

communication other than speech 

 activities that include all learners both inside and outside the classroom, for 

example, when visiting local places of worship and other special places of 

significance. 

When working with learners with additional learning needs, practitioners and carers 

should be aware of the school or setting’s approach to RVE within the Humanities 

Area. 

For further information on ALN refer to guidance on Routes for Learning and the 

Additional Learning Needs Code for Wales 2021. 

 

17. Education in funded non-maintained nursery settings 

RVE provision in a funded non-maintained nursery setting should be considered as 

part of an overarching holistic approach to learning and development. The 

‘Designing your curriculum for RVE’ section above provides further information on 

RVE for ages 3 to 16, to support practitioners in these settings with this holistic 

approach. 

Young learners are endlessly curious; they enjoy exploring and investigating by 

themselves and with others, and naturally ask questions about life and the world 

around them. Through engaging, practical, integrated activities in this period of 

learning, they can begin to learn more about themselves, other people and the wider 

world. 

 

Page 26



Effective, learner-centred pedagogy, which is responsive, dynamic and embedded in 

strong relationships, should be central to the development of RVE provision in a 

setting. Through play, learners are able to develop their ideas, opinions and feelings 

with imagination, creativity and sensitivity, which can help inform their view of the 

world. Spending time outdoors supports learners’ social, emotional, spiritual and 

physical development, as well as their well-being. Being outdoors also helps them to 

develop an awareness of the need to show care and respect for living things. 

Learners in this period of learning are beginning to understand the concept of 

‘difference’. Practitioners should encourage them to share their knowledge and 

experiences of their own beliefs, heritage and traditions, as well as those of others 

(for example, through songs, stories and role play). This can help young learners 

understand more about themselves, as well as about experiences and viewpoints 

which may differ from their own. 

A supportive, nurturing environment, where learners can learn about each other’s 

differences and similarities, can help them to begin to develop respectful 

relationships and a sense of responsibility. They can begin to explore the language 

of rights and start to understand their right to believe different things and follow 

different beliefs. Through this, learners from an early age can begin to identify and 

understand how their actions may affect others, and learn to reflect on and revise 

their own perspectives, as appropriate. 

 

18. Education other than at school 

All learners have a right to an education. When considering how best to meet the 

needs of their learners, providers of education other than at school (EOTAS), 

including pupil referral units (PRUs), are required to have regard to the mandatory 

curriculum components, which include RVE, and secure provision in relation to them 

so far as that would be reasonably possible and appropriate for the individual 

learner. 

Learners’ experiences should enable them to explore RVE concepts through the 

statements of what matters in the Humanities Area, using various sub lenses in RVE 

which are provided in this guidance. Such settings are not required to deliver the 

agreed syllabus. However, the RVE provided in these settings must still satisfy the 

pluralistic requirement. 

More information on the legislative requirements for PRUs and EOTAS can be found 

in the legislation section of the Curriculum for Wales Framework. 

19. Relationships and sexuality education in this Area 

This Area provides an important opportunity for learners to understand how societal 

understandings of relationships, sex, gender and sexuality have changed over time 

and how they continue to evolve. Exploring RSE through the Humanities Area can 

inspire learners to deepen their understanding of key issues and develop the skills to 

interpret ideas and presentations about RSE throughout history and across different 

Page 27



cultures and contexts around the world. For example, this could consider how norms 

and perceptions of LGBTQ+ people have changed over time. It also supports 

learners to engage critically with information, to understand the basis of information 

presented as fact, and make critical judgements about how to use and respond to 

the knowledge sources available to them. 

 

This Area also offers learners opportunities to explore human rights, values, ethics, 

philosophies, religious views relating to relationships and sexuality. This provides 

learners with important opportunities to discuss, explore and develop understanding 

of different perspectives on RSE issues, shaped by religious and non-religious 

worldviews, ethical challenges and social inclusion issues. This also supports 

learners to understand and navigate the tensions between different perspectives. 

This can also support learners to engage critically with local, national and global 

RSE issues in both the past and present, helping them to become ethical, informed 

citizens and ready to play a full part in life and work. 

Page 28


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes - Agreed Syllabus Conference  25.2.22

	5 The Agreed Syllabus for Religion, Values and Ethics for Anglesey schools

